
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Charlotte Evans 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864210   Ebost: evansca1@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 8 Mai 2019 

 
 
 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod Cabinet fel Ymddiriedolwyr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon yn cael ei gynnal yn 
Ystafell Sirhywi, Tŷ Penallta, Tredomen, Ystrad Mynach ar Dydd Mercher, 15fed Mai, 2019 am 11.00 
am.(neu’n syth ar ôl yr Cabinet) i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol. Mae croeso i chi 
ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn 
dymuno gwneud hynny.  Bydd cyfieithu ar y pryd yn cael ei ddarparu ar gais. 
 
 
 
 

 
Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR DROS DRO 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
   
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau 
personol a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â 

Mae pob cyfarfod Pwyllgor yn agored i'r Wasg a'r Cyhoedd. Gofynnir i arsylwyr a chyfranogwyr 
ymddwyn gyda pharch ac ystyriaeth at eraill. Sylwer y bydd methu â gwneud hynny yn golygu y 
gofynnir i chi adael y cyfarfodydd ac efallai y cewch eich hebrwng o'r safle. 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr 
a Swyddogion. 
 

I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
3  Cabinet fel ymddiriedolwyr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon a Thiroedd Hamdden Amrywiol a 

gynhaliwyd ar 16eg Ionawr 2019.  
1 - 4 

 
4  Sefydliad y Glowyr, Coed Duon - Adolygiad Aelodaeth.  

5 - 12 
 

 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr 
 C.J. Cuss, N. George, C.J. Gordon, Mrs B. A. Jones, P.A. Marsden, S. Morgan, L. Phipps, D.V. Poole a 
Mrs E. Stenner,  
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd  neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy 
e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


 

 

 

CABINET SITTING AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD MINERS’ 
INSTITUTE, THE NINE MILE SCHOLARSHIP FUND  

AND THE JOHN EDWARDS FUND 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, TREDOMEN 
ON WEDNESDAY 16TH JANUARY 2019 AT 11.25 A.M. 

 

 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor D.V. Poole – Chair 
 
 

Councillors: 
 
 C. Cuss (Social Care and Wellbeing), N. George (Neighbourhood Services), C. Gordon 

(Corporate Services), B. A. Jones (Finance, Performance and Governance), P. Marsden 
(Education and Achievement), S. Morgan (Economy, Infrastructure and Sustainability), L. Phipps 
(Homes and Places) and E. Stenner (Environment and Public Protection).  

 
 

Together with: 
 

 C. Harrhy (Interim Chief Executive), R. Edmunds (Corporate Director - Education and Corporate 
Services), M. S. Williams (Interim Corporate Director - Communities), D. Street (Corporate 
Director – Social Services and Housing) and S. Harris (Interim Head of Business Improvement 
Services). 

 
 

Also in attendance: 
 
  P. Hudson (Marketing and Events Manager), M. Eedy (Finance Manager) and A. Dredge 

(Committee Services Officer).  
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 There were no apologies for absence received.  
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 There were no declarations received at the commencement or during the course of the meeting. 
 
 

3. CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE MINUTES – 
17th OCTOBER 2018  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 17th October 2018 (minute nos. 1 - 
4) be approved and signed as a correct record. 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3



 

4. BLACKWOOD MINERS' INSTITUTE ANNUAL REPORT AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
2017/2018 
 
The report updated Cabinet as Trustees of the Blackwood Miners’ Institute (BMI) of the 
operational activities and financial position of BMI for the financial year ending 31st March 2018.  
BMI was conveyed as a charitable trust to Islwyn Borough Council, (and subsequently to 
Caerphilly County Borough Council), and was registered as a charity on 13th November 1990.  
The local authority, acting as sole corporate trustee has a legal duty to operate the charity in 
accordance with the governing document, and has a legal obligation to account for the charity’s 
finances in accordance with the Charity Act 2011.  The annual report and audited statement of 
accounts for 2017/2018 were appended to the report.  Cabinet as Trustees of BMI are required to 
consider the accounts prior to the annual report and accounts being submitted to the Charity 
Commission as part of the annual return, in compliance with the requirements of the Charity Act 
2011. 
 
Members were advised that in response to the ongoing reductions in Council subsidy, BMI is 
working hard to increase the income from shows by changing the way it agrees profit sharing, 
and also by bringing in new acts to attract new audiences.  Income generated from shows in 
2017-18 was £302,315 which continues to increase from £249,768 in 2015/2016 and £275,119 in 
2016/2017 (an increase of 21% £52.6k in two years).  Bar and vending services which only 
operate when there are events in the building also generated combined profit of £13,449 towards 
the aims of the charity and to improve financial viability.  The Arts Council Wales - Arts Portfolio 
Wales (APW) grant of £129,376 allocated to BMI provides additional funding for programme 
support.  This will help with arranging a full programme including offsite performances and an 
increased number of accessible performances.  It will also increase marketing and technical 
capacity, allowing BMI to continue co-producing and increase participation in the arts. 
 
Members discussed the annual report and debated how opportunities can be maximised ensuring 
that BMI remains sustainable and resilient in moving forward.  It was suggested that Officers seek 
advice in respect of reviewing the membership of the trustees.  This will include the arts and 
commercial sector within BMI and ensure revenue remains sustainable and resilient and a further 
report be brought in response.  Officers advised that a meeting is scheduled with the Arts Council 
for Wales on the 17th January 2019 regarding the funding agreement.  Officers will then develop 
a business plan in line with the funding allocation.  The funding had been increased 3 years ago 
and the last 2 years has remained the same. 
 
Following consideration and discussion, and subject to the foregoing it was moved and seconded 
that the recommendations in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously 
agreed. 
 

RESOLVED that subject to an additional recommendation that Offices to seek advice in 
respect of reviewing the membership of the trustees to include arts and commercial sector 
expertise to maximise opportunities within BMI and ensure revenue remains sustainable 
and resilient and a further report be brought in response, and for the reasons contained in 
the Officer’s report: - 

 
(i) the contents of the Annual Report and audited Statement of Accounts for 

Blackwood Miners’ Institute for financial year 2017/2018, be noted and endorsed; 
 
(ii) Officers to seek advice in respect of reviewing the membership of the trustees to 

include arts and commercial sector expertise to maximise opportunities within the 
BMI and ensure that revenue remains sustainable and resilient, and a further 
report be brought in response. 

 

Page 2



5. CABINET SITTING AS TRUSTEE OF THE NINE MILE SCHOLARSHIP FUND AND THE JOHN 
EDWARDS MEMORIAL FUND 

 

The report sought Cabinet as Trustees approval to amend the rules of the Nine Mile Scholarship 
Fund and the John Edwards Memorial Fund (“the Charities”). 

 

Members were advised that following the closure of Pontllanfraith and Oakdale Comprehensive 
Schools, the objects of the above Charities can no longer be applied for their original purposes. 
The Officer explained that the Council by its Cabinet sitting as a corporate trustee is required to 
pass a resolution altering the objects of the Charities so that the charitable funds may in the 
future be applied for the benefit of pupils attending the newly opened Islwyn High School. 

 

The trustees discussed the report and were pleased to acknowledge that the charities had been 
set up with good intention and respect.  They also discussed exploring the possibility of changing 
the trustee membership that will consider such reports in moving forward.   

  

Following consideration and discussion, and subject to the foregoing it was moved and seconded 
that the recommendations in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously 
agreed. 
 

RESOLVED that subject to an amendment at paragraphs 10.1.3. and 10.2.3. to include 
and the relevant Cabinet Member and an additional recommendation that Officers to 
explore the possibility of changing the trustee Membership that will consider memorial 
fund reports in moving forward, and for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: - 

 

The rules of the John Edwards Memorial Prize Fund be amended as follows:  
 

(i) the Prize Fund continues to be administered by the Council’s Cabinet sitting as 
Corporate Trustee; 

 

(ii) the income of this charity be utilised in the award of a prize to a pupil or pupils of 
Islwyn High School that reside in the catchment area of the former Oakdale 
Comprehensive School who have shown good academic progress and worthy of 
merit; 

 

(iii) the award of a prize or prizes shall be made by the Chief Education Officer and the 
relevant Cabinet Member upon the recommendation of the Head teacher. 

 

To resolve that the rules of the Nine Mile Point Lodge Scholarship be amended as follows: - 
 

(i) the Scholarship continues to be administered by the Council’s Cabinet sitting as 
Corporate Trustee; 

 

(ii) the income of the Scholarship Fund be utilised annually for the purchase of books 
or equipment for the pupils of Islwyn High School who reside in the villages of 
Ynysddu  and Cwmfelinfach; 

 

(iii) the award of the scholarship or scholarships will be made in September each year 
by the Chief Education Officer and the relevant Cabinet Member upon the 
recommendation of the Head teacher; 

 

(iv) Officers to explore the possibility of changing the trustee Membership that will 
consider memorial fund reports in moving forward. 

 

The meeting closed at 11.45 am. 
 
 

____________________ 
CHAIR 

Page 3



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 4



 

 
 

 

CABINET AS TRUSTEES OF BLACKWOOD MINERS INSTITUTE 
15TH MAY 2019 

 

SUBJECT: BLACKWOOD MINERS’ INSTITUTE – MEMBERSHIP REVIEW 
 

REPORT BY: INTERIM CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES  
 

 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1 To advise Cabinet as Trustees of Blackwood Miners’ Institute of the options for reviewing the 
membership of the trustees to include arts and commercial sector expertise. 

 
 

2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 At the Cabinet as Trustees meeting of Blackwood Miners’ Institute held on the 16th January 

2019 it was resolved that Officers seek advice in respect of reviewing the membership of the 
trustees to include arts and commercial sector expertise, to maximise opportunities within the 
BMI, and ensure that revenue remains sustainable and resilient and that a further report be 
brought in response (4.(ii)).  

 
2.2 Currently the local authority acts as sole corporate trustee and has a legal duty to operate the 

charity in accordance with the governing document and has a legal obligation to account for 
the charity’s finances in accordance with the Charity Act 2011. All charities must produce 
annual statements of accounts under charity law.  

 
2.3 There are a number of ways that the Council can effect a change in the membership in order 

to progress towards delivering a sustainable and resilient service, as follows: 
 

 Incorporate the charity; 

 Appoint new Trustees under the existing Trust; 

 Set up Holding Trust; 

 Set up an Advisory Group. 
 
 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Cabinet consider option 5.1.2 outlined in section 5 of the report to 

‘Appoint new Trustees under the existing Trust’ as its favoured option. 
 
 

4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To respond to the previous request of the trustees to seek advice on reviewing the 

membership of the trust. 
 
4.2 To present the trustees with an option whereby external arts and commercial sector expertise 

can be engaged without delay and at little expense. 

Page 5

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 4



5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 Blackwood Miners’ Institute was conveyed as a charitable trust to Islwyn Borough Council, 

and (subsequently to Caerphilly County Borough Council) in 1990.  The objects of the charity 
are set out in the Trust Deed dated 15th October 1990 and include:    

 

 To promote, improve, develop, maintain and advance public awareness and participation 
in, and encourage an appreciation of the art and science of, music, dance, drama, 
literature and the visual arts.  

 To promote, through appropriate activities, the education and training, mental and spiritual 
capacities of people who are unemployed, young people and pre-school children.  

 To educate the public in the geography, history and architecture of the area and set out 
the Institute’s responsibility in safeguarding against drug and alcohol abuse.  

 
 Blackwood Miners’ Institute was registered as a charity with the Charity Commission 

(registered as Blackwood Arts Centre) on 13th November 1990.   
 
 Local authorities are empowered by Section 139 of the Local Government Act 1972, to 

receive and hold gifts on charitable trusts, and the local authority is currently the sole 
corporate trustee for this charity, holding a legal duty to operate the charity in accordance with 
the charity’s Trust Deed and strictly in furtherance of its stated objects.   
 
The benefits that are often cited for the conversion to Trust status include: 
 

 Tax and business rate benefits in the form of Rate relief, VAT recovery and gift aid 
opportunities. 

 Access to funding not available to the Public Sector such as grant giving charitable trusts. 

 Greater appeal to attract donations, bequests and sponsorship income. 

 Scope for enhanced efficiency savings. 

 Development opportunities. 

 Control of any reserves generated to reinvest. 

 Freedom from bureaucracy.  

 Free from local authority funding constraints. 

 Dynamic flexibility to innovate and respond to opportunities. 
 
The disbenefits can include the following: 
 

 Loss of control and accountability over strategic facilities. 

 Loss of ‘absorbed’ costs such as HR, payroll, ICT, procurement, marketing and financial 
support.  

 Prospect of redundancies. 

 Reputational damage through stakeholder perceptions.  

 Consideration of TUPE and pension costs. 

 Potentially reduced service availability.  

 Set up / transfer costs. 

 Inability to obtain asset backed investment funding / loans. 

 Increasing maintenance liabilities. 

 Risk retained by the local authority if a trust fails financially. 

 Contract monitoring and management costs. 
 
 The options to effect a change to the membership of the trustees are outlined in more detail 

below:  
 
5.1.1 Incorporating the Charity   
 The Council could convert the structure of the charity from an unincorporated trust to a 

Charitable Incorporated Organisation (CIO) or a Charitable Company. This potentially has the 
advantage of widening participation in the running of the charity. Incorporation would establish 

Page 6



the charity as a separate legal entity to the Council, which would be managed by its appointed 
trustees, members and/or directors depending on the model chosen. All assets of the Charity 
would transfer over to the new organisation, including staff who would be employed directly by 
the CIO or Charitable company.  

 
The Council would no longer play any part in the Charity, although it would be possible for 
individual members of the Council to become a Trustee, member or director of the CIO or 
Charitable Company. Set up and administration costs for CIO’s or charitable Companies are 
likely to be high due to formalities required to be followed with the Charity Commission and 
Companies House. Due to the complexity of these matters, they can take some time to put in 
place. 

 
5.1.2 Appoint new Trustees under the existing Trust 
 It is possible to add, remove or replace trustees under the powers contained in a Charity’s 

governing document (where a power exists). The 1990 Deed of Conveyance does not contain 
any express powers of appointment; however, it does contain a power of amendment, which 
can vary the terms of the Trust to possibly add new trustees, although this cannot be used to 
change the Charity objects. Statutory powers contained in the Trustee Act 1925 can also be 
used to add Trustees to the Charity. The Council could make the changes it desires by formal 
resolution of Cabinet, which would then authorise the Trust Deed to be varied.  
 

5.1.3 Holding Trust 
In addition to adding new trustees, or replacing itself as Trustee, the Council could establish 
itself as a holding trustee for the purpose of the assets, with a separate group of managing 
trustees, making the day to day decisions. Initial advice on any proposal should be sought 
from the Commission as in some circumstances the Commission may use its own powers to 
establish a scheme for the Charity, which would replace the existing governing document. 

 
5.1.4 Set up an Advisory Group 
 Cabinet sitting as Trustees could resolve to establish a working or advisory group with terms 

of reference, which possibly could be made up of internal officers and members, as well as 
outside experts. This is a more informal option as the group will not have any decision making 
responsibility, but will report back to Cabinet for approval of matters. This is within the current 
scope of the Trustees powers and does not change the Charity’s governing arrangement. It 
will not require any further approvals or consent. 

 
5.2 CONCLUSION 
 
5.2.1 Officers were asked to seek advice in respect of reviewing the membership of the trustees to 

include arts and commercial sector expertise to maximise opportunities within the BMI and 
ensure that revenue remains sustainable and resilient. 

 
5.2.2 Incorporating the charity is a time consuming and potentially costly option that will require 

extensive staff consultation, a comprehensive review of current operations and assets and 
there are several  organisational variants of how this transfer could be achieved that are being 
explored in more depth through the BIP work. Pursuing this option would likely require 
external ‘expert’ support in order to implement. 

 
5.2.3 Appointing new trustees is the most expedient option that can be undertaken with a potentially 

lower cost and implementation period that would allow external trustees to be appointed. 
 
5.2.4 The Council’s legal team are still awaiting a reply from the Charity Commission in respect of a 

holding trust. 
 
5.2.5 Whilst an advisory group could be achieved in good time and at little expense, the power of an 

advisory group does not carry with it the same authority as the Trustee Board in holding a 
legal duty to operate the charity in accordance with the charity’s Trust Deed and strictly in 
furtherance of its stated objects.  

Page 7



 
5.2.6 The ongoing reduction in Local Government funding is forecast to continue and will impact on 

funding for non-statutory areas of public sector spending and in order to enable Blackwood 
Miners Institute to thrive and build its resilience it would benefit from broadening the 
experience and commercial knowledge of its trustees to include trustees external to the 
organisation with relevant experience of operating within the art and cultural environment that 
the Blackwood Miners Institute sits within. 

 
5.2.7 This can be achieved without a significant impact on employees currently working at the 

Institute by pursuing option 5.1.2.  
 
5.2.8 As part of the Business Improvement Portfolio work a report has been drafted that explores a 

number of alternative delivery models that option 5.1.1 relates to in more detail and is 
intended to be brought forward as part of the Caerphilly 2022 transformation programme. 

 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 It has been assumed that the financial pressures on local authority budgets will continue in the 

medium term as outlined in the Council’s Medium Term Financial plan combined with 
continuing inflationary pressure’s expected on wage and non-wage expenditure. 

 
6.2 Population growth by 2029 is only expected to rise by 1% from 180,795 (2017 mid-year 

estimate) to 183,000, limiting the potential catchment area for venues like Blackwood Miners 
Institute that remain community focussed in their audiences. 

 
6.3 It is also assumed changes in the age distribution of the population and changes to the 

composition of family structures will impact on entertainment and leisure choices and the need 
to adapt to future service provision accordingly.  

 
 
7. LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1 Effective financial planning, governance and the setting of balanced budgets and efficient 

delivery of services is at the heart of everything the Council does and is fundamental to the 
future of local service delivery. 

 
 The report links to the following Council policies:  

 

 The Value of Historic Places, Conservation Strategy for the Historic Environment 2014 – 
2019, CCBC. 

 A Foundation for Success 2018-2023’ - Regeneration Strategy for Caerphilly County 
Borough. 

 
7.2 Corporate Plan 2018-2023 
  
 Blackwood Miners Institute is a creative hub and houses the Council’ Arts Development 

Service and the South East Wales Arts & Education Service that along with the Institute 
support a number of policy areas and contributes to the following corporate objectives:  
 
Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all 

 
Objective 2 - Enabling employment 

 
Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in accordance with 
the sustainable Development Principle within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 

 

Page 8



 The proposal will help to ensure the viability and vitality of Blackwood Miners Institute and its 
creative and cultural role in the community. 

 
 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS   
 
8.1 Blackwood Miners Institute contributes to the Well-being goals through the generation of 

additional footfall, economic benefits and contributing to a vibrant educational, cultural and 
heritage offering. 

 
The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 sets out seven Well-being Goals 
which aim to make a positive impact upon the social, economic, environmental and cultural 
well-being of the area or community concerned. The visitor attractions within the service 
through their programme of activities and focus align with the following Well-being Goals: 

 

 A prosperous Wales 
Venues such as Blackwood Miners Institute play a key role in the community providing a 
focus and structure to entertainment, destination and consumer spending choices creating 
economic prosperity through direct employment in the creative and visitor economy 
generating valuable secondary spending to support local industry employment. 
  

 A healthier Wales 
Social prescribing has been highlighted by Public Health Wales as an opportune tool to 
support a healthier Wales through recognition of the impact of social determinants on 
health and well-being. Blackwood Miners Institute is a community asset that offer 
opportunities to support volunteering and through the enjoyment of cultural and art 
performance and participatory activity that can help improve self-esteem, mood, social 
contact and the development of transferable skills nurturing creativity. 
    

 A more equal Wales 
The provision of a range of opportunities to participate in art and creative activity across 
the county borough can help remove cultural, geographic, economic and social barriers to 
life enhancing participation and engagement benefits contributing to a more equal Wales. 
 

 A more resilient Wales 
Arts and cultural provision can help nurture innovation and creativity reaching beyond their 
realm, though they are its natural nurturing ground. Creativity is a skill that can be used to 
bring innovative solutions to familiar problems, and encourage new ways of thinking and 

living.   
 

 A Wales of Cohesive Communities 
The provision of venues such as Blackwood Miners Institute that are engineered to deliver 
educational, creative and cultural activities in a safe environment can increase individual 
and community confidence and sense of self-worth, building social cohesion by creating 
friendship and a sense of 'belonging'. It can make people feel safer and more positive 
about where they live, taking a pride in their own culture, heritage and background. 

 

 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language. 
The service provides a range of activities across the entertainment and art areas 
contributing significantly to the cultural vibrancy of the area. Over 35,000 participate or 
engage with a programme of cultural activities at Blackwood Miners’ Institute over a diary 
of 200 performances / shows per year. 

  

 A Globally Responsible Wales 
Arts, heritage and culture help us to appreciate and understand the world we live in, 
inspiring and exciting us to question, explore and bring new insights to familiar challenges 
and can unlock our creativity and imagination, helping us to become more engaged, active 
and fulfilled citizens. 

Page 9



 
The report is consistent with the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable 
development principle in the Act:  
 
Long term 
The report provides options to ensure the long term sustainability, viability and role of 
Blackwood Miners Institute in contributing to the economic prosperity of the region by 
providing a range of options to meet the financial challenges ahead without submitting to 
short term objectives that could be detrimental to the long term needs of future 
generations. 
 
Prevention 
Having identified the financial challenges that lie ahead, the report aims to provide a range 
of options that can be considered that address the issue of sustainability and prevent 
problems arising in the longer term whilst still allowing the local authority to support the 
creative industry through the provision of art and cultural provision.   
  
Integration 
The Council’s well-being objectives for the period 2018-2023 support a number of national 
objectives and the hosting of the South East Wales Arts & Education Service is an 
example of how Blackwood Miners Institute is integrating to the work of the Arts & 
Education Service in supporting wider learning in schools in the Expressive Arts and the 
delivery of the new Welsh Curriculum. 
 
Collaboration 
There are a number of options identified in the report that provide an opportunity to 
engage and collaborative with external stakeholders.   
 
Involvement 
The Council provides opportunities for our residents to participate and represent their and 
their community’s interest in achieving their well-being goals through participation in the 
‘Nights out’ scheme and ‘Get Creative’ festival and in relation to Blackwood the 
bicentennial celebrations planned for 2020.  

 
8.2 There are a number of ‘national indicators’ that are used to measure progress against the 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act that relate to Blackwood Miners Institute 
including: 

 

 No 28: Percentage of people who volunteer. 
  

 No 35: Percentage of people attending or participating in arts, culture or heritage 
activities at least three times a year. 

 

 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  An EIA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council’s Strategic Equality 

Plan and supplementary guidance. No potential for unlawful discrimination and/or low level or 
minor negative impact has been identified; therefore a full EIA has not been carried out 

 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are set up and administration costs that will need to be explored and determined if 

Cabinet acting as trustees is minded to agree option 5.1.2 (appointing new trustees under the 
existing trust) as its preferred option. Option 5.1.4 is likely to incur lower level costs in respect 
of advertising and likely remuneration expenses. 

Page 10



11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 Option 5.1.1 and 5.1.3 would involve staff transferring to a new Trust entity under the Transfer 

of Undertakings Regulations (TUPE) where the new Trust entity would assume all statutory 
and contractual rights as the new employer.  

 
11.2 The preferred option (5.1.2) does not give rise to any significant personnel related issues. 
 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 The comments from consultees have been included in this report. 
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
 
13.1 Charities Act 2011, Local Government Act 1972 and the Trustees Act 1925. 
 
 
Author: Paul Hudson, Destination & Events Manager  
Consultees:  Cllr Sean Morgan, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member Economy, Infrastructure, 

Sustainability and Well Being and Future Generations  
Mark S Williams Interim Corporate Director of Communities 
Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Business Improvement  

 Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services 
Richard Crane, Senior Solicitor 
Lisa Lane, Corporate Solicitor  
Anwen Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer – Equalities 
Rhian Kyte, Head of Regeneration and Planning  
Allan Dallimore, Regeneration Manager  
Mike Eedy, Finance Manager 

 

Page 11



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 12


	Agenda
	3 Cabinet fel ymddiriedolwyr Sefydliad y Glowyr Coed Duon a Thiroedd Hamdden Amrywiol a gynhaliwyd ar 16eg Ionawr 2019.
	4 Sefydliad y Glowyr, Coed Duon - Adolygiad Aelodaeth.

